ORIGINAL

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

ALWIN J. JACOBS

PETITIONER / DEFENDANT

FILED
THOMAS D. HALL

APR 29 2002

CLERK, SUPREME COURT
BY

v.

CASE NO: SC02-107

DISTRICT COURT NO: 3D01-573

STATE OF FLORIDA

RESPONDENT / PLAINTIFF

AMENDED INITIAL BRIEF
FLORIDA SUPREME COURT
"DIRECT CONFLICT"

ALWIN J. JACOBS, 230659
BOX 949000 B2-1445
MIAMI FLORIDA 33194

STATEMENT OF CASE AND FACTS

PETITIONER WAS TRIED AND CONVICTED IN THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT COURT IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY FLORIDA.

TRIAL COMMENCED ON JUNE 8 1999 AND THE JURY RETURNED A GUILTY VERDICT ON JUNE 9, 1999. FINDING THE PETITIONER GUILTY OF: BURGLARY OF AN UNOCCUPIED DWELLING PETITE THEFT AS REDUCED AND CRIMINAL MISCHIEF 200⁰⁰/LESS

ON AUGUST 11, 1999 THE PETITIONER WAS ADJUDICATED AS AN HABITUAL FELONY OFFENDER AND SENTENCED TO 67 MONTHS IMPRISONMENT FOLLOWED BY 24 MONTHS COMMUNITY CONTROL FOLLOWED BY 60 MONTHS PROBATION AND TIME SERVED ON THE TWO MISDEAMEANOR COUNTS.

THE PETITIONER FILED A DIRECT APPEAL TO THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL WHICH WAS PER CURIAM AFFIRMED ON APRIL 19 2000.

ON SEPTEMBER 10, 2000 THE PETITIONER FILED A PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS IN THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL WHICH WAS ALSO PER CURIAM AFFIRMED.

ON NOVEMBER 1, 2000 THE PETITIONER FILED HIS INITIAL MOTION 3.850 PURSUANT TO F. R. APP. P. 3.850 2000 IN THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT COURT IN

AND FOR DADE COUNTY FLORIDA. THIS MOTION WAS DENIED AT THE CIRCUIT COURT LEVEL AND APPEALED TO THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL WHO PER CURIAM AFFIRMED HIS CONVICTION BY MAJORITY WITH OPINION AND ONE DISSENTING OPINION BY SENIOR JUDGE COPE.

PETITIONER FILED A NOTICE TO INVOKE DISCRETIONAL JURISDICTION IN THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT ON JANUARY 15, 2000

PETITIONER FILED A MOTION TO REINSTATE HIS APPLICATION FOR DISCRETIONAL JURISDICTION OF THE SUPREME COURT AND RECEIVED A RULING ALLOWING HIM TO DO SO ALONG WITH AN ORDER TO FILE AN AMENDED BRIEF, RECEIVED BY THE PETITIONER ON APRIL 19 2002.

THIS TIMELY FILED AMENDED BRIEF FOLLOWS;

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL ERRED WHEN IT FAILED TO COMPLY WITH THE RULING IN HIGHSMITH VS. STATE, 613 SO.2D 825 (1ST D.C.A. 1993) AND FURTHER CREATED CONFLICTS IN RULINGS IN PALMER V. STATE 683 SO.2D 678 (FLA 4TH DCA); FLORES V. STATE, 662 SO.2D 1350 (FLA 2ND DCA 1995) AS WELL AS THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL'S OWN DECISION IN PHILLIPS VS. STATE, 687 SO.2D 915 (FLA 3RD DCA 1997)

ARGUMENT THREE IN THE DEFENDANTS 3.850 MOTION FOR POST-CONVICTION RELIEF MET ALL THE REQUIREMENTS OF A PROPER "HIGHSMITH" CLAIM AND THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL FAILED TO REMAND FOR AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING AS PER PALMER, FLORES, AND PHILLIPS, SUPRA;

IN THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL'S WRITTEN OPINION JUDGE COPE ADDRESSES THIS CONFLICT IN HIS DISSENTING OPINION.

ARGUMENT

THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL ERRED IN NOT REMANDING THE DEFENDANTS FOR AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING ON GROUND THREE OF HIS 3.850 MOTION FOR POST-CONVICTION RELIEF, AND CREATED A CONFLICT IN RULINGS IN OTHER DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL AS WELL AS IN THE THIRD DISTRICT ITSELF.

WHERE COUNSEL NEGLECTED TO PROPERLY INVESTIGATE THE CASE PRIOR TO TRIAL THE ISSUE IS PROPERLY RAISED IN POST-CONVICTION PROCEEDINGS. SEE: CAMPBELL V STATE, 616 SO.2D 995 (FLA 2ND DCA 1992)

WHERE A DEFENDANT PRESENTS A FACIALLY SUFFICIENT CLAIM OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL FOR INADEQUATELY INVESTIGATING HIS CASE AND PREPARING FOR TRIAL AT A MINIMUM AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING MUST BE HELD, SEE: HARRIS V. STATE, 704 SO.2D 1067 (FLA 1ST DCA 1997)

WHERE A DEFENDANT RAISES AN ISSUE OF COUNSEL'S FAILURE TO PRESENT ALIBI WITNESSES A PROPER "HIGHSMITH" CLAIM IS COGNIZABLE: SEE: HARRIS, SUPRA IN HIGHSMITH V. STATE, 617 SO.2D 825 (FLA 1ST DCA 1993) HIGHSMITH AT 826 SETS FORTH THE REQUIREMENTS TO STATE A FACIALLY SUFFICIENT CLAIM:

[1] IN CASES INVOLVING CLAIMS OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL BASED ON COUNSEL'S ALLEGED FAILURE TO INVESTIGATE AND TO INTERVIEW WITNESSES. A FACIALLY SUFFICIENT MOTION MUST INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING ALLEGATIONS:

- (1) THE IDENTITY OF THE PROSPECTIVE WITNESSES;
- (2) THE SUBSTANCE OF THE WITNESSES TESTIMONY;
- (3) AN EXPLANATION AS TO HOW THE OMISSION OF THE EVIDENCE PREJUDICED THE OUTCOME OF THE TRIAL:

SEE: SOREMAN V. STATE 549 SO.2D 686 (FLA 1ST DCA 1989)

WHERE A SUFFICIENT "HIGHSMITH" CLAIM IS PLED, AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING MUST BE HELD. SEE: PALMER V. STATE 683 SO.2D 678 (FLA. 4TH DCA 1996); FLORES V. STATE, 662 SO.2D 1350 (FLA 2ND DCA 1995) AND THE THIRD DISTRICT COURTS OWN DECISION IN PHILLIPS V. STATE 687 SO.2D 915 (FLA 3RD DCA 1997) AND COHEN V STATE, 775 SO.2D 336 (FLA 2ND DCA 2000) AND HONORS V STATE, 752 SO.2D 1234 - 1236 (FLA. 2ND DCA 2000)

IN PALMER, SUPRA: THE FOURTH DISTRICT SUPPORTED THE PETITIONER'S ALLEGATION WHEN HE ALLEGED THAT COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR FAILING TO CALL WITNESSES WHOSE TESTIMONY WOULD HAVE BEEN FAVORABLE TO THE DEFENSE.

IN HONORS SUPRA THE SECOND DISTRICT COURT OF

APPEAL RULED THAT "FAILURE TO INVESTIGATE OR CALL EXCULPATORY WITNESSES PRESENTS A PRIMA-FACIE SHOWING OF ENTITLEMENT TO RELIEF, SUBJECT TO REBUTTAL BY EVIDENCE FROM THE RECORD OR TESTIMONY AT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING.

IN THIS INSTANT CASE NO SUCH REBUTTAL EVIDENCE EXISTS. THE DEFENSE COUNSEL FILED A TIMELY MOTION/ NOTICE OF HIS INTENTION TO RELY ON THESE TWO ALIBI WITNESSES. AND FURTHER NO EVIDENTIARY HEARING WAS HELD.

HERE THERE EXISTS A CLEAR CONFLICT BETWEEN THIS DECISION IN THIS INSTANT CASE AND THOSE CASES AFOREMENTIONED.

IN ARTICLE V SECTION 3(B)(3) FLORIDA CONSTITUTIONAL HOLD'S THAT THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT "MAY REVIEW ANY DECISIONS OF A DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL ... THAT MAY EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICT WITH A DECISION OF ANOTHER DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OR THE SUPREME COURT ON THE SAME QUESTION OF LAW."

AS NOTED IN APPENDIX "A" THE PETITIONER'S CLAIM THREE OF HIS 3.850 MOTION FOR POST-CONVICTION RELIEF AND APPENDIX "B" PETITIONER'S MEMORANDUM OF LAW FOR THE ABOVE MENTIONED CLAIM THREE, THE PETITIONER HAS MET ALL THE REQUIREMENTS OF A PROPER "HIGHSMITH" CLAIM THUS CREATING A CONFLICT IN THEIR MAJORITY

RULING AND THE AFOREMENTIONED CASE LAW AND FACTS PRESENTED IN THIS BRIEF AND IN SUPPORT OF THE PETITIONER'S ALLEGATION OF SAID DIRECT CONFLICT.

IN FURTHER SUPPORT FLA. R. APP. P. 9.140 (g) STATES " UNLESS THE RECORD SHOWS CONCLUSIVELY THAT THE APPELLANT IS ENTITLED TO NO RELIEF THE ORDER SHALL BE REVERSED AND THE CAUSE REMANDED FOR AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING."

HERE THE RECORD SUPPORTS NO SUCH CONCLUSION. THERE EXISTS A CLEAR AND DIRECT CONFLICT AS SUPPORTED BY THE DISSENTING OPINION OF THE HONORABLE JUDGE COPE. AND THIS ISSUE SHOULD BE REMANDED TO THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING.

CONCLUSION

BASED ON THE FOREGOING FACTS AND LAW'S
THE PETITIONER MOVES THIS HONORABLE COURT TO FIND
IN HIS FAVOR AND DIRECT THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF
APPEAL TO ISSUE AN ORDER TO THE ELEVENTH CIRCUIT
COURT TO HOLD AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING IN LIEU OF
THE EXISTING DIRECT CONFLICT THAT EXISTS IN THIS RULING
UNDER ATTACK AND THOSE IN THE AFOREMENTIONED CASE'S
IN SUPPORT OF THIS PETITION