ORIGINAL

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. SC02-107 DCA CASE NO. 3D01-573 THOMAS D. HALL
JUN 0 3 2002

ALWIN J. JACOBS,

CLERK, SUPREME COURT BY_____

Petitioner,

-VS-

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON PETITION FOR DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA, THIRD DISTRICT

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

MICHAEL J. NEIMAND Bureau Chief Florida Bar No. 0239437

MEREDITH L. BALO Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0360340 Office of the Attorney General 444 Brickell Avenue, Suite 950 Miami, FL 33131 Telephone:(305) 377-5441 Facsimile: (305) 377-5655

INTRODUCTION

Petitioner, ALWIN J. JACOBS, was the defendant in the trial court and Appellant in the District Court of Appeal of Florida, Third District. Respondent, THE STATE OF FLORIDA, was the prosecution in the trial court and the Appellee in the District Court of Appeal. The parties shall be referred to as they stood in the trial court. All references to the attached appendix will be designated by "App." followed by the appropriate letter and a colon to indicate the appropriate page number.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

This is a petition for discretionary review of a decision of the Third District Court of Appeals which affirmed the trial court's summary denial of post conviction relief. The Defendant was convicted of burglary of an unoccupied dwelling. The Defendant filed a motion for post conviction relief alleging eight counts of ineffective assistance of counsel. The Third District Court of Appeals held that the Defendant's claims were meritless where the Defendant failed to meet his burden under *Strickland v. Washington*, 46 U.S. 668, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984).

In regards to one of Defendant's claims of ineffective assistance of counsel, in which a dissenting opinion was filed, the Court found that Defendant's claim was facially insufficient. Specifically, the Defendant argued that his counsel was

ineffective for failing to call two witnesses who would have testified that he was at home with them during the time of the burglary. However, the Court held "other eyewitness testimony placed the defendant at the scene of the crime and there was overwhelming evidence of the defendant's burglary of the unoccupied dwelling." *Jacobs v. State*, 800 So. 2d 322, 323 (Fla. 3d DCA 2001); (Appendix A). The Court additionally commended the trial court's detailed order denying Defendant's motion as facially insufficient and stating:

Given the overwhelming evidence against the Defendant, consisting of an eyewitness identifying the Defendant at the scene of the crime and at trial and the Defendant being found within two blocks of the crime scene, the outcome of the trial would not have been altered by the proposed witnesses testimony even assuming the witnesses would have testified as the Defendant alleges.

Id. at 324 n.1. The Court further found that the failure of counsel to call these witnesses constituted a sound tactical decision and was not ineffectiveness.

Subsequently, the Defendant filed the instant appeal in this Court seeking jurisdiction. The State's brief on jurisdiction follows.

QUESTION PRESENTED

WHETHER THIS COURT SHOULD DECLINE DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION IN THIS CAUSE SINCE THE DECISION BELOW DOES NOT EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICT WITH THE DECISIONS CITED BY THE DEFENDANT.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Respondent respectfully requests this Court to decline to accept jurisdiction in this case. Petitioner has failed to demonstrate that the decision of the Third District Court of Appeal expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of this Court or of another district court of appeal on the same question of law, or that it falls under any of the subdivisions provided in Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2), or Art. V, Section 3(b)(3), Fla. Const. (1980).

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT SHOULD DECLINE DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION IN THIS CAUSE SINCE THE DECISION BELOW DOES NOT EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICT WITH THE DECISIONS CITED BY THE DEFENDANT.

Article V, Section 3(b)(3), Fla. Const. (1980) and Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), provides that the discretionary jurisdiction of the Supreme Court may be sought to review a decision of a District Court of Appeal which expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another District Court of Appeal or of the Supreme Court on the same question of law. Decisions are considered to be in express and direct conflict when the conflict appears within the four corners of the majority decisions. *Reaves v. State*, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986).

The Defendant contends that the appellate court's decision conflicted with *Palmer v. State*, 683 so. 2d 678 (Fla. 4th DCA 1996); *Flores v. State*, 662 So. 2d 1350 (Fla. 2d DCA 1995); *Phillips v. State*, 687 So. 2d 915 (Fla. 3d DCA 1997); *Cohen v. State*, 775 So. 2d 336 (Fla. 2d DCA 2000), *Honors v. State*, 752 So. 2d 1234 (Fla. 2d DCA 2000), and *Highsmith v. State*, 617 So. 2d 825 (Fla. 1st DCA 1993). First, as to the alleged conflict with *Phillips v. State*, it is well settled that for this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction based on conflict, the conflict must be between the district court's opinion and this Court's opinion or *another* district courts'

opinion. Conflict jurisdiction can not lie if it alleged to be within a single district as the Petitioner herein alleges. *Little v. State*, 206 So. 2d 9 (Fla. 1968).

Next, there is no conflict between the instant opinion and the opinions in *Palmer* and *Flores*. The *Palmer* court reversed on the basis of a lack of record, so it was unable to determine whether the outcome of trial would have been different. The *Flores* opinion concerned ineffective assistance of counsel for failure to discuss different defenses and for failing to object to the lack of a jury instruction on premeditation.

Lastly, there is no conflict between the instant opinion and the opinions in *Cohens, Honors*, and *Highsmith*. Rather, the instant opinion is in accordance with these opinions. The Defendant argues that the "failure to investigate or call exculpatory witnesses presents a prima-facie showing of entitlement to relief, subject to rebuttal by evidence from the record or testimony at an evidentiary hearing." (Petitioner's Brief: 6); *See, Honors v. State*, 752 So.2d 1234, 1236 (Fla. 2d DCA 2000); *Cohens v. State*, 775 So. 2d 336, 337 (Fla. 2d DCA 2000). However, the court below in the instant opinion found that the overwhelming contrary evidence would not have changed the outcome of the trial, so the Defendant was, hence, not entitled to relief. It is the "conflict of *decisions*, not conflict of *opinions* or *reasons* that supplies jurisdiction for review by certiorari." *Jenkins v. State*, 385 So. 2d 1356,

1359 (Fla. 1980). Therefore, no conflict exists where the instant opinion clearly follows the law and found that the Defendant's allegations were rebutted by the overwhelming evidence presented at trial. *Cf. Highsmith, supra* (Court found that outcome of proceedings could have been affected through defense attorney's failure to interview and call witnesses at trial, that such error was compounded by prosecutor's comment on failure to call these witnesses, and that testimony concerning whether defendant had knowledge of firearm under his seat in car could have affected the outcome.) In the instant case, though, there is no indication that the defense attorney failed to interview the witnesses, only that he declined to call them to testify. Additionally, there is no evidence that the defense attorney's decision not to call the witnesses was compounded by any comments on the failure to call such witnesses. Therefore, there is no conflict within the four corners of the opinions.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, based on the preceding authorities and arguments, Respondent respectfully requests that the Court decline jurisdiction to review this cause.